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1. Name
historic Woodlawn -
and/or common Woodlawn

2. Location

street & number 9254 01d Annapolis Road N/A not for publication
city, town Columbia _X vicinity of congressional district Sixth
state Maryland code 24 county Howard code 027
3. Classification
Category Ownership Status Present Use
___ district ____ public _X occupied ____ agriculture ____ museum
X building(s) _X_private ____ unoccupied ____ commercial ____park
____ structure —_both —__ work in progress ____ educational X__ private residence
site Public Acquisition Accessible — entertainment — religious
object ____in process —_yes: restricted —__government —_ scientific
___ being considered ____yes: unrestricted — industrial —__ transportation
_X not applicable _X po ___ military ___other:

4. Owner of Property

name Mr. and Mrs. Carl M. Leventhal

sireat & riicabai 9254 0l1d Annapolis Road

Columbia N/A
city, town — vicinity of state

Maryland 21044

5. Location of Legal Description

courthouse, registry of deeds, etc. Howard County Courthouse.

street & number

Ellicott City

city, town state Maryland 21043
6. Representation in Existing Surveys

Maryland Historical Trust
title Historic Sites Survey has this property been determined elegible? ___yes X no
date 1981 __federal X _ state ___county ____ local
depository for survey records Maryland Historical Trust, 21 State Circle
city, town Annapolis siiie Maryland 21043




7. Description

HO-30
Condition Check one Check one
— excellent — deteriorated ___ unaltered X _original site
X good — ruins __X altered —_moved date ’
— dan — unexposed

Describe the present and original (if known) physical appearance =

DESCRIPTION SUMMPARY

~ Woodlawn is a two story, stuccoed stone house constructed in the mid-
nineteenth century, whose design reflects the transition between the Greek
Revival and Italianate styles. The house is three bays wide by two bays deep,
and has a shallow-pitched, metal-clad hip roof. The central bay of the principal
(north) facade projects slightly and is capped with a shallow cross-gable; the
entrance is located in this bay, and features double doors surmounted by a
transom and flanked by sidelights, sheltered by a one-story, hip-roofed portico
supported on chamfered posts with scrollwork brackets. French doors are found
in the outlying bays of the first story. On the second story, a double 4/4
window occupies the central bay, with 6/6 sash on either side. All windows
have louvered shutters and modillioned cornices which duplicate the design of
the building cornice. One-story, hip-roofed porches span the east and west
facades; these, like the entrance portico, have chamfered posts and modillioned
cornices. Two brick central chimneys pierce the roof; a frame one-story
three-bay, gabled ell extends to the rear of the house. The building has a
center-hall plan, and retains significant interior detail including door and
window architraves with corner blocks, and a simple but well-proportioned stair

typical of finer mid-19th-century dwellings in rural Maryland. The first-floor
. rooms feature deep crown moldings, plaster ceiling medallions, and carved
marble mantelpieces.

GENERAL DESCRIPTION

Woodlawn faces north on the east side of Route 108, one mile south of its
intersection with Route 29. Woodlawn is a mid-nineteenth century transitional
Greek Revival-Italianate building. The house is located on a five-acre tract of
land, which was once part of a working farm of some 200 acres, but which now
comprises the Oakland Ridge Industrial Park. An entrance road into the indus~
trial park lies just south of the Columbia Bank and Trust Company on Route 108.
Before entering Bendix Corporation a road turns south into the five acre tract.
The house stands on a gentle knoll surrounded by mature trees and shrubbery.

It is a three bay wide, two bay deep, two story high, hip-roofed stone (covered
with stucco) structure with two wide, central, brick chimneys, and a cross-
gable above a central projecting entrance bay. Fenestration is rectangular,
proportionally scaled, and decorated with brown shutters, flat stone sills and
wooden cornices, supported by rows of four brackets.

The central projecting entrance bay of the south wall features an inter-
secting gabled roof and holds a wide, rectangular, double entrance door, with
large one-over-one lights, surmounted by a two-light transom and flanked by
four-pane verticle side lights. The door knobs are silver-plated brass. A
hip-roofed portico, whose cornice is decorated with a row of modillions, rests
on chamfered posts decorated with scrolled brackets. An entrance lantern hangs
. from the center of the portico's ceiling.

SEE CONTINUATION SHEET #1
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GENERAL DESCRIPTION (Continued)

A wide double second-floor window rests above this north entrance. It
consists of two double-hung windows, lying side by side, with four-over-four
lights. The flanking double-hung second-floor windows hold six-over-six lights.
Three similiar second-floor windows are located in the east wall, two punctuate
the west wall, and two are on the south wall of the square, hip-roofed main
building block. French doors with three-over-three lights replace first floor
windows. They are surmounted by two-light transoms and are vertically aligned
and proportionally scaled to the second floor windows. A cellar door is
located under the french door in the east bay of the south wall.

The east elevation holds three french doors, similar to those described,
and three similar second floor windows, while the west elevation is similar but
has only two bays. Hip-roofed, one story high porches lie on the east and west
walls of the main building block and have cornices, decorated with a row of
modillions, resting on chamfered posts. The east porch is screened in with a
central bay entrance; while the west porch remains open, running along the
. entire west elevation of the main stone building block, as well as along the

north bay of the frame service wing. An exterior, square brick chimney lies
along the east bay of the south wall.

This service wing is believed to be a later addition, replacing an earlier
separate kitchen. It is three bays wide by two bays deep, and extends southward
from the south wall of the main stone structure. Its east and west walls are
similar, holding three first floor, rectangular, double-hung windows with six-
over-six lights, while the three second floor casement windows, holding two-
over-two lights, rest above. A west entrance on the north bay replaces a first
floor window, while an additional entrance is located in the east bay of the

south wall. A one story high, frame west bay addition holds a bathroom for the
service area.

The interior plan of Woodlawn's main building block features a central
hall and staircase with public rooms (dining room, butler's pantry, and double
parlor) arranged on either side. The hall, which is of a larger scale than
that generally found in Howard County, featuring a fourteen foot high ceiling,
takes up one third of the total floor space of the building and was evidently
used as an additional public room.

BOUNDARY JUSTIFICATION

The approximately five acre parcel included in this nomination encompasses
the house, outbuildings, and their historic rural setting. The complex is
. surrounded by recent residential and industrial subdivisions.




. 8. Significance
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Period Areas of Significance—Check and justify below
— prehistoric __ archeology-prehistoric ___ community planning ___ landscape architecture___ religion
— 1400-1499 __ archeology-historic — conservation — — science
— 1500-1599 ___ agriculture — economics — literature —— sculpture
— 1600-1693 _X__ architecture — education — military — soclal/
—— 1700-1798 _ art — engineering — music - humanitarian
X_1800-1899 __ commerce — exploration/settlement __ philosophy — theater
— 1900~ —__ communications —_ industry — politics/government _ transportation
- —__ invention — other (specify)
Specific dates first half, 19th centgﬂﬂdeﬂArchﬂect unknown
Statement of Significance (in one paragraph)
A riteria: B, C
SIGNIFICANCE SUMMARY ppLicable ‘G '

Woodlawn derives significance from its architecture, and from its association
with Henry Howard Owings. Architecturally, Woodlawn is unique in Howard County
in representing the transition between the Greek Revival and Italianate styles.
Elements of the Greek Revival are embodied in the building's square proportions,
smooth stuccoed surface, and simple interior trim, while the central projecting
bay and deep cornice reflect Italianate influence. As transitional form,
Woodlawn complements other Howard County resources, such as the Greek Revival
Mount Ida and the Italianate villas Temora and Elmonte. Woodlawn is also
significant for its association with Henry Howard Owings, a prominent Howard
County landowner and farmer. The property's present appearance reflects the
period of Owing's occupancy in the 1850s and 1860s, during which time he served
as a judge of the Orphan's Court for Howard County. Owings died at Woodlawn

. in 1869.

HISTORY AND SUPPORT

Woodlawn is one of the oldest stone houses in the second district of
Howard County. It is unique in the county in representing a transitional
Greek Revival-Italianate style building of the first half of the nineteenth
century. Elements of the Greek Revival style can be found in the square
proportions of the main block, the smooth stuccoed surface, and the simplicity
of the interior design. Elements of the Italianate style can be found in the
deep cornice and the central projecting bay of the front facade. This treat-
ment of the central entrance bay is reminiscent of both Temora and El Monte,
fully developed Italianate buildings in Howard County. Another element of the

Italianate style is found in the house's one story porches on its east and west
elevations.

The extensiveness of Woodlawn's exterior stylistic detail is matched by
only a few other Howard County buildings. Such detail is the work of master
craftsmen, evidenced in the modillioned window and roof cornices. The interior
embodies the distinctive characteristics of the Greek Revival style as found
in rural Howard County, featuring door and window frames composed of flat
pilasters and lintels, joined by square blocks. The grey marble fireplace
in the dining room is an excellent example of the Greek Revival style with
its flat pilasters and deep, flat architrave.

SEE CONTINUATION SHEET {2
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HISTORY AND SUPPORT (Continued)

A similar mantelpiece is found in HO-87, Bethesda/Dower House, constructed
circa 1832 and lying some distance northwest of this property. Another fine,
curvilinear, white marble fireplace, reminiscent of the Italianate Baroque period,
is found in the larger section of the double parlor. The deep crown molding,
which runs around the perimeter of the hall, dining room, and each of the
double parlors, as well as the four major ceiling medallions found in these
public rooms, possess high artistic value.

The floors throughout the main block are hardwood, with wood inlay running
around the perimeter of each of the first floor rooms.

Woodlawn is also notable as one of Howard County's few large stone houses.
Although stone as a building material ranks third in scarcity, following log
and brick construction, there are only a few stone buildings of this scale in
the county. Most of these stone buildings are of modest proportions and were
constructed circa 1810-1B20, a period of general prosperity following the war

. of 1812.

Woodlawn appears to have been constructed in the early nineteenth century
at a time when Howard County was a part of Upper Anne Arundel County. It is
not known for whom it was erected, but a similar marble fireplace has been
found in a section of Bethesda/Dower House, which is believed to have been
constructed circa 1832. Also, newspapers dated 1823 have been found by building
contractors when undertaking renovations. Unfortunately, these were not
preserved and do not necessarily tie the building to that date. Nor can it be
proven that Woodlawn was the residence of Eleanor Holmes before the time of her
marriage to John R. D. Thomas in 1849, when she made John H. B. Latrobe trustee
of the property in her behalf. 1In 1859, Mr. Latrobe sold the property to Henry
Howard Owings for $17,000. Land records reveal Mr. Owings owned other acreage
in Howard County, including the Owings-Myerly farm on Route 32 in Clarksville.
Woodlawn served as the residence of Mr. Owings, a judge of the Orphan's Court
of Howard County, until his death in 1869.

Woodlawn served as the main house for a very successful agricultural
operation. The will of Henry Owings indicated the self-sufficiency, as well
as prosperity, which surrounded the family at Woodlawn. The will is also a
master document of detail on the extensiveness of the farm and its buildings,
enumerating the '"'meat house, wash house, milk house, ice house and ... two
frame stables ... the corn house... the pond."” The will also lists the
following crops devised to Owings' wife" "fifty barrels of corn, 200 bushels
of oats, five tons of hay, one thousand pounds of bacon or pork... two barrels

. of wheat flour...."
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Howard County Land Records, Courthouse, Ellicott City, Md..
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10. Geographical Data
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Verbal boundary description and justification

The boundaries are defined on the attached maps.
For Boundary I_J\eseri-p@ion, see Continuation Sheet {1

- Wi./itj"*"k- LY Zaas —
List all states and counties for properties overlapping state or county boundaries
state N/A code county code

.state code county code

11. Form Prepared By

name/title Cleora Barnes Thompson
organization Howard County Planning Department g4 e 1981
street & number 3430 Courthouse Drive telephone 301-992-2418

Ellicott City Maryland

city or town state
12. State Historic Preservation Officer Certification

The evaluated significance of this property within the state is:

____national ____ state X _local

As the designated State Historic Preservation Officer for the National Historic Preservation Act of 1966 (Public Law 89—
665), | hereby nominate this property for inclusion in the National Register and certify that it has been evaluated
according to the criteria and procedures set forth by the Heritage Conservation and Recreation Service.

State Historic Preservation Officer signature %%ﬁ, /2-22 -—32_
i

title STATE HISTORIC PRESERVATION OFFICER date

“or HCRS use only
| hereby certify that this property is included in the National Register

date

Keeper of the National Register

/ {tcst: _ date

Chief of Registration
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- tEE INSTRUCT.NS

9254 01d Annapolis Road ' =
CITY OR TOWN:!
Columbia
STATE COUNTY:
Maryland Howa rd
|3, CLASSIFICATION '
CATEGORY ACCESSIBLE
Oow P
(Check One) NERSH: SYATVS TO THE PUBLIC
[ District [ Building |0 Public Public Acquisition: K] Occupied Yas:
[ Site [ Structure &) Private [ In Process [0 Uneccupiod BY) Restricted
[ Object [ Beth [J Being Considered [] Pressrvetion werk ] Unrestricted
in progress [J Ne
PRESENT USE (Check One or More as Appropriate)
(] Agricultural (] Government [ Park [0 Tronsportation ] Comments
[0 Commarcial [ Industrial K] Private Residence [[] Other (Specity)
[0 Educational O Militery [J Religious
[ Entertainment O Museum [ Seientific
F4. OWNEZR OF PRCPERTY
OUWNER'S NAME:
Dr. Carl M. Leventhal
STREET AND NUMBER:
9254 01d Annapolis Road
CITY OR TOWN: STATE:
| Columbia Maryland 21044
f5. LOCATION OF LEGAL DESCRIPTION %7
[COURTHOUSE, REGISTAY OF DEEDS, ETC: '
Hall of Records
STREET AND NUMBER:
3450 Courthouse Drive
CITY OR TOwN: STATE
Ellicott City Maryland 21043

1400 3a54-04-
HO-30
District 2

'MARYLAND HISTORICAL TRUST WORKSHEET

i NOMINATION FORM
. for the
NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES, NATIONAL PARKS SERVICE

J1. NAME

COMMON:
Woodlawn Farms

AND/OR HMISTORIC:

f2. LocaTiON

STREET ANC NUMBER:

Title Reference of Current Deed (Book & Pg, #): Tax Map #3

[6; REPRESENTATION IN EXISTING SURYVEYS

423-409 P.0. p. 26

TITLE OF SUNHYETY)
Howard County Historic Sites Inventory

DATE OF SURVEY, 19?7 [} Fedaral KX Stale 7] County [ Leeal

DEPOMNTORY FOR BUAVEY AFCOMRDM

Maryland Historical Trust

BYMELT AND NUMBE R,
21 State Circle

CITY Om 10wWMI [

BTATE: [
Annanolis Marviand 214M
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Circa 1785 & 1840
7. DESCRIPTION e —

(Check One)
ﬁ Excellent [ Goed [ Feir [C] Deteriorated ] Ruins [ ‘Unexposaed
CONDITION (Check One) (Check One)
] Altered I Uncltered ] Moved %] Original Site

DESCRIBE THE PRESENT # 40D OQRIGINAL (If known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

Woodlawn Farms is a three bay wide, two bay deep two story, hipped roof
stone structure with two central brick chimmeys.

Fenestration is rectangular, proportionally scaled, and decorated with
black shutters, flat stone sills and flat projecting molded wooden lintels
supported by four brackets.

The central bay of the north wall projects outward and is crowned by a
gabled roof and holds a wide rectangular double entrance door which is
surmounted by a two lite transom and flanked by four vertical side lites.
A hipped roof portico whose cornice is decorated with a row of brackets is
held by two square posts and two wall pilasters decorated with scrolled
brackets. An entrance lantern hangs from the center of the portico's
ceiling. An additional entrance is located in the west bay of the south
wall. :

33§

A wide double window rests above this north entrance consisting of two
double hung windows lying side by side with four-over-four lites. The
remaining double-hung second floor windows hold six-over-six lites.

French doorswith three-three lites replace first floor windows and have
casement transoms holding one-one lites. A cellar door is located under the
french door in the east bay of the north wall.

The east elevation holds three french doors similar to those described and
three similar second floor windows, while the west elevation is similar but
has only two bays.

Hipped roof one story high porches lie on the east and west walls of the
building and have cornices decorated with a row of brackets, supported by
three square posts and two half-posts at the wall. The east porch is screer
in with north and south entrances while the west porch remains open and
runs along the west side of the south wall.

(1]
SHOILONYLSNI

A square brick chimney lies along the east

An older four bay wide, two bay deep frame
the south wall of the main structure. Its

having four
lites while

entrance is

first floor rectangular double

bay of the south wall.

structure extends southward from
east and west walls are similar
hung windows with six-over=-six

four second floor casement windows with two-two lites lie above|

A west door in the north bay replaces a first floor window while an additior

located in the east bay of the south wall.

al

Auxiliary buildings and horse barns including slave quarters and tenant
house are located east of the property.

The building 18 in excellent condition.

—
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Circa 1785 & 1840
[ SiGNIFICANCE
PERIOD (Check One or More as Appropriate)
[ Pre-Columbian [ 16th Century R 18th Century [ 20th Century
[ 15¢th Gentury [ 17th Century F] 19th Century

SPECIFIC DATE(S) (Tf Applicable and Known)

AREAS OF SIGNIFICANCE (Chack One or More as Appropriate)

Abor iginal [0 Education ] Peliticsl O Urben Planning
[ Prehisteric [ Engineering [ Religion/Phi. O3 Other (Specity)
[ Histeric O Industry lesophy

O Agricuiture [ invention [] Science

Architecture [0 Landscope O Seculpture

O An Architecture O Secial/Human-

O Commerce O Literature iterion

O Communications [ Military [ Theater

[ Censervation ] Music O Trln!peﬂl"ioq'

[STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

'"Woodlawn Farms'' is believed to have been built by the Thomas family circa
1840, In 1859 Major Henry Howard Ow..ings bought 'Woodlawn Farms' as well
as part of Dr, Allen Thomas ''Dalton'',

The wooden frame south section of the house is believed to date from about
1785 while an ancient stone slave quarters located on adjoining property pro
bably belonged to an early Dorsey settler.

Major Henry Howard Owings was one of the first commissioners of Howard
County. He through two successive wives, Miss Gist and Elizabeth Dorsey
had four sons and five daughters. Samuel Sheridan Owings , his son in-
heri ted Woodlawn Farms,

One of Howard Counties most significant and beautiful landmarks, Woodlawn
Farms is registered with the Maryland Historical Trust and presented in a
brochure issued by the Howard County Historical Society as one of 60 of
the County's most outstanding landmarks. It has been incorporated in the
State Critical Areas Planning Rrogram for Howard County as one of some 50
historical sites suitable for preservation.

LleJ

It should be considered for inclusion into the National Register for Histori
Places and any future local landmark legislation,
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[5- MAJOR BIBLIOGRAPHICAL REFERENCES R e e e T T

Warfield, J,D, Founders of Ann Arundel and Howard Counties, Maryland,
Baltimore: 1973

Interview with Mrs. Mark Handwerk, great-grand-daughter of Henry Howard
Owings who lived at Woodlawn Farms and Arlington, January 13, 1977.

The citizens Advisory Group, the Office of Planning and Zoning, State Critica

Areas Planning Program Howard County, October 26, 1976, Woodlawn Farms

£10. GEOGRAPHICAL DATA
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APPROXIMATE ACREAGE OF NOMINATED PROPERTY:

1Acreage Justification:
'Please see Tax Map 30  423/L409, P,0, p. 26 5 acres
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NAME AMD TITLE:
Cleora B, Thompson, Archivist
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Comprehensive Planning Section

STREET AND NUMBE A:
3450 Courthouse Drive

CITY OR TOWN: STATE

Ellicott City Maryland 21043
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338

SNOILONYLSNI

Sianatunre




MFrvTame &

i ¥
>y 2elfron

—"WOODLAWN FARMS  H0-30

TAX MAP # 30
\\ l
P/o
P.2¢
~
b f OAXLAND RIDCE ™~ -~
4 R1IB ‘s INDUST. PARK -~
’ '\\T Stt-m LOT = &1-€™~
™ c . 15 . 0oa.
il 4 ; SN 4
1-
N_ HO.RES.fDEV, C i L
\\_-2,49':.;:3_13134-" - o

OARLAND RIDCE
SEC. IIT
EQUESTRIAN

plo ~ ~
3:..30:.'& /-:/\ MR -A.
e LoT-BF p'fa f‘:.:\
ALer 7 p NI Y

~ \ s
LOT=-86 N
4. 9TA.

rla
o.IrR, I. P. hoTn

-RE-SY8 \J.HA
LoT go \\a.;_

- = LS ! .
3 'Ef A ""-...“ VINCENT o, Muuul.u\
T A S~ 705/24
~' s &
La A 26.904.
"n‘-.b Lo 44y B2 ios /

O
v T
3 »

RO g Fﬂ:bl %
_‘1._‘5__/*“ F!gl 1’.‘!‘_'{_1_;&_125 I_H! LL

: -y 43
wy 2o it

COLONIAL CORNER

SERVICES Ccar’pP
685/52 &
101.57A.

R 73

e

m-_:&l?:&'{:} NI,

2 BRS '

LN TR
L4 -
\t"};,“:’\'"/
& -
A 'j\.'_,rnr N \1

1~ .
PR

15 1/ NS
ik 9
(] i S b AL
- xS R A )

AT
RPN
A




OR MAP OF FLOOD-PRONE AR

3 ot _ BALTIMORE 13 MI, 5662 IV SE 06 M. TO U.S. 29
[*41 _ 50 [*42 A 2.2 M| TO'U.S. 40143 (ELLICOTT cITY) M4

RS
e ol XM S ATTACHMENT 72

: y WOODLAWN FARMS




Quad;,/ 195 o ’ !

*Savagt

%

LS

.

.
-

. .
._._/ \
BN T

\ R
hY

{ - AL \aS
—\Golf Cour

AN
Y rd




